
 

 

Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454  

e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - CABINET 

 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 7 May 2013 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Cabinet: 
 
Councillors: G A Porter (Leader of the Council), C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the 
Council), P S Przyszlak (Deputy Leader), M G Chandler, R Gambba-Jones, H R Johnson, 
C J Lawton and G J Taylor. 
 
No substitutions permitted. Revised quorum 4. 
 

Note:  Cabinet reports may be referred to Council or Scrutiny Panels.  They 
should therefore be kept for future reference during the current 
committee cycle.   
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
Member Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   26 April 2013 
 



A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on 19 February 2013 (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
1 - 14) 

3.  Declarations of Interest. - (Members are no longer required to declare 
personal of prejudicial interests but are to declare any new Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests that are not currently included in their Register of 
Interests. 
 
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to 
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in 
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)    
 

 

4.  Questions raised by the public under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4.  
 

 

5.  To consider any matters which have been subject to call-in.  
 

 

6.  To consider matters arising from the Policy Development and 
Performance Monitoring Panels in accordance with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules.  
 

 

7.  Proposal Assessment Process (Springfields S106 funding) - To present 
a Proposal Assessment Process to be used to assess project proposals 
for the use of the remaining Section 106 contributions received from the 
development of Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre (report of the 
Portfolio Holder for Economic Development, Commercial Assets and 
Strategic Planning and the Deputy Chief Executive enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
15 - 40) 

8.  Any other items which the Leader decides are urgent. -  
 
Note:  (i) No other business is permitted unless by reason of 

special circumstances, which shall be specified in the 
Minutes, the Leader is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of urgency.   

 
(ii) Any urgent item of business that is a key decision must 

be dealt with in accordance with paragraphs 15 and 16 of 
the Constitution’s Access to Information Procedure 
Rules. 

 



- 47 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the CABINET held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 19 February 2013 at 6.30 pm. 
 

 PRESENT  

  
G A Porter (Leader) 

 
C N Worth (Deputy 
Leader) 
P S Przyszlak 
 

M G Chandler 
H R Johnson 
 

C J Lawton 
G J Taylor 
 

Junior Portfolio Holders:  
 

 R Grocock and A R Woolf. 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors R Gambba-
Jones, together with Edward John Poll (Lincolnshire County Council) and Maureen 
Scantlebury (Welland Seniors Forum)   
 
In Attendance:  Councillor B Alcock (Chairman Performance Monitoring Panel), 
Councillor A Harrison (Chairman Policy Development Panel), Councillor G R Aley, 
Councillor R Perkins and Councillor D J Wilkinson, the Chief Executive, the Assistant 
Director Democratic Services and the Assistant Director Finance (Section 151 
Officer). 
 
Community Representatives:  Ladey Adey (South Lincolnshire Community Voluntary 
Service), Reginald William George Boot (Parish Councils), Harry Drury (Chamber of 
Commerce), Lisa Barwell (South Holland Citizens Advice Bureau) and Jim Tyner 
(Lincolnshire Police) 
 

61. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 January 2013 were signed by the Leader as a 
correct record.   
 

62. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 
No interests were declared. 
 

63. QUESTIONS RAISED BY THE PUBLIC UNDER CABINET PROCEDURE RULE 
2.4.  
 

• In accordance with Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4, Mr Craig Jackson asked the 
following questions: 

 
Bearing in mind the Localism Act 2011, can you tell me what the latest advice 
is to councillors, especially those on the Planning Committee, with regards to 
the pre-determination of planning applications? 
 
The Leader stated that all councillors on the Planning Committee had been advised 
of information detailed within the Localism Act.  All councillors were aware that they 

Agenda Item 2.

Page 1



- 48 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

had to approach each planning application with a clear mind and be open to the 
evidence presented to them. 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised that information had been presented to the Planning 
Committee in January 2012, providing guidance on the information detailed within the 
Localism Act. She advised that Mr Jackson would be provided with a copy of this 
guidance after the meeting.  
 
In relation to clarifying the rules on predetermination, the publication ‘A plain 
English guide to the Localism Act’ states the following:  
 
‘In parallel with the abolition of the Standards Board, the Government has used 
the Localism Act to clarify the rules on predetermination.  These rules were 
developed to ensure that councillors came to council discussions – on, for 
example, planning applications – with an open mind.  In practice, however, 
these rules had been interpreted in such a way as to reduce the quality of local 
debate and stifle valid discussion.  In some cases councillors were warned off 
doing such things as campaigning, talking with constituents, or publicly 
expressing views on local issues, for fear of being accused of bias or facing 
legal challenge. 
 
The Localism Act makes it clear that it is proper for councillors to play an 
active part in local discussions, and that they should not be liable to legal 
challenge as a result.  This will help them better represent their constituents 
and enrich local democratic debate.  People can elect their councillor confident 
in the knowledge that they will be able to act on the issues they care about and 
have campaigned on.’ 
 
Why is that some so-called Independent District Councillors representing 
Sutton Bridge say that they are unable to comment or offer an opinion on 
planning applications when the Act has clarified how councillors can interact 
with their constituents on these issues? 
 
The Leader responded that this was not an appropriate issue for the Cabinet to 
answer.  He reiterated that members had to go to debates regarding planning 
applications with an open mind, and the fact that members may express opinions 
prior to a debate could lead to legal challenge.  Councillors could actively lead 
campaigns but had to be mindful of the pre-determination issue.  Mr Jackson would 
need to speak to the relevant councillors to find out why they were not commenting 
on the application.     
 
Do you support your economic development policies relating to the Wingland 
Enterprise Park (Chapter 5 – Policy EC1 – on major employment areas – sites 
allocated for employment use)? 
 
Paragraph 5.14 states – Currently, employment development on this site is 
expected to be confined to Classes B1, B2 and B8 and only in exceptional 
circumstances will other employment types which do not fall within these 
categories be considered, and only if they are appropriate and would not 

Page 2



- 49 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

prejudice the supply of B1, B2 and B8 development land.  Any such proposals 
would in particular be considered in terms of their sustainability, employment 
generation, contribution to the local economy, impact on the environment and 
impact on vitality and viability of nearby centres. 
 
The Leader responded that this was a question for the Planning Committee and not 
the Cabinet to answer.  The Cabinet did have a direct input to the Local Plan.  The 
Cabinet as a whole could not answer this question however, individual Portfolio 
Holders could where the issue fell within their remit. 
 
Your policy also states that if those exceptional circumstances arose, it would 
be considered in terms of its sustainability, employment generation, 
contribution to the local economy, impact on the environment and impact on 
the vitality and viability of nearby centres. 
 
The Leader responded that this was a question for the Planning Committee and not 
the Cabinet to answer.   
 
The proposed development at the Wingland Enterprise Park would result in an 
additional 120 plus HGV movements per day - do you not think that this poses 
a road safety risk at King John Bank which is completely unsuitable for this 
increased weight traffic, and when the bridge is open will increase congestion 
and exhaust emissions? 
 
The Leader responded that this was a question for the Planning Committee and not 
the Cabinet to answer.  If concerns regarding road safety were substantiated, the 
Highways Department at Lincolnshire County Council would need to have regard to 
this. 
 
King’s Lynn Borough Council has stated that there are currently no Air Quality 
Monitoring Zones in South Holland – is this correct? 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Regulatory Services commented that he believed that there 
were two Air Quality Monitoring Stations within the South Holland area.  The Leader 
advised that this information had to be confirmed and that Mr Jackson would receive 
this information in due course. 
 
(Following the meeting, the Portfolio Holder for Regulatory Services requested that a 
statement confirming the above information be attached as an appendix to these 
minutes). 
 
Why were the former owners of the existing gas fired power station at Sutton 
Bridge allowed to buy themselves out of the planning condition that required 
them to provide the necessary infrastructure to provide electricity to the 
Wingland Enterprise site? 
 
The Leader advised that any alteration to a S106 agreement was a Planning issue 
and not a Cabinet issue.  Although the recipient of the relevant amount within the 
S106 may change, the overall amount would remain the same.  

Page 3



- 50 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

 
What support is the District Council offering to parish councils that wish to 
establish Neighbourhood Plans? 
 
The Leader advised that the Cabinet was generally in support of Neighbourhood 
Plans.  However, the plans were generally administered by the relevant communities 
and not by the Council.  He also commented that input into Neighbourhood Plans 
was always welcome and that with regard to Sutton Bridge specifically, ideas for 
suitable and unsuitable enterprises on the Wingland Enterprise Park would also be 
welcome. 
 

• In accordance with Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4, Mrs Joan Houlder asked the 
following questions: 

 
The Localism Act had been introduced to make the planning process clearer.  
What weight was attached to the results of parish polls with regard to planning 
issues in light of the introduction of the Localism Act? 
 
The Leader advised that the Localism Act had not been specifically introduced for 
planning, however, it should make the planning process more user-friendly and 
speed up planning applications.  Parish polls held no weight within the planning 
process, however, individual members may have regard to them. 
 
Why did parish polls hold no weight within the planning process? 
 
The Leader advised that this was not a local issue and was a question for the 
Secretary of State. 
 
Was the Cabinet aware of the parish poll that had been held in Sutton Bridge 
which asked the question ‘Do you want a gasifier on the Wingland site?’ Was 
the outcome known? 
 
The Leader advised that he was aware of the parish poll, that there had been a 
turnout of approximately 14%, with a handful of votes cast for the question and 
approximately 450 - 460 votes cast against the question. 
 
Did the Cabinet recognise that this was a good turnout, bearing in mind that no 
poll cards were issued, that the poll was held in December and that the polls 
were only open for 5 hours? 
 
The Leader advised that this was not a comparatively good turnout.  There  were 
significantly fewer objectors than for the scheme in Kings Lynn. 
 
The Leader thanked Mr Jackson and Mrs Houlder for attending the meeting and 
raising their questions.  He stated that there were many routes through which the 
public could express their concerns on various issues and some of the issues raised 
at this meeting had not been appropriate for the Cabinet.  He suggested that the 
correct route to take would be to contact planning officers who would be able to deal 
with the objectors concerns either individually or as a group. 

Page 4



- 51 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

 
64. TO CONSIDER ANY MATTERS WHICH HAVE BEEN SUBJECT TO CALL-IN.  

 
There were no matters subject to call-in. 
 

65. FINAL REPORT OF THE COMMUNITY TRANSPORT TASK GROUP  
 
Consideration was given to the final report of the Community Transport Task Group 
containing recommendations which had been approved by the Policy Development 
Panel.   
 
The Policy Development Panel had re-established the Community Transport Task 
Group on 30 August 2011, and it had commenced its work on 19 July 2012.  The 
scope of the review was to examine the current position in relation to the following 
projects – Voluntary car scheme (including as a model for young people); Wheels to 
Work; and the Minibus brokerage scheme, and to make recommendations to 
Cabinet, if necessary, on how South Holland District Council could support the 
schemes.  The final report was attached at Appendix A. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 
thanked the Task Group for its work.  The following issues/changes to the content of 
the final report and the covering report were raised: 
 

• It was clarified that John Potter had occasionally helped with the Youth Council, 
and was not a consultant as detailed in the covering report; 

• South Holland Car Scheme – Holbeach and Crowland parishes were both 
members of the car scheme but were not mentioned as such within the final 
report; 

• In relation to the minibus brokerage scheme, it should be clarified that Holbeach 
Community Minibus was not part of the incentive scheme. 

 
DECISION: 
 
That the following recommendation of the Task Group be approved: 
 

• That South Holland District Council continue to support all three projects, and 
that promotion of these services be undertaken. 

 
(Other options considered: 

• Not to approve the Task Group’s Final Report and/or suggest that some or all 
of the recommendations be amended; or 

• Do nothing  
Reasons for decision: 

• In terms of the three projects which formed the subject of the review, the Task 
Group felt that these initiatives were proceeding reasonably well.  However, 
there was a need to undertake more promotion of the services that were 
available and they should therefore retain the support of South Holland District 
Council.)  

 

Page 5



- 52 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

66. INTERIM REPORT OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF CCTV IN SOUTH HOLLAND 
TASK GROUP  
 
Consideration was given to the interim report of the Effectiveness of CCTV in South 
Holland Task Group containing recommendations which had been approved by the 
Performance Monitoring Panel. 
 
The Performance Monitoring Panel had agreed to re-convene the Effectiveness of 
CCTV in South Holland Task Group on 6 November 2012, and it had commenced its 
work on 21 November 2012.  The scope of the review was to examine the 
effectiveness of the Council’s CCTV service and prospects for future provision. 
 
The Task Group had not yet concluded its work, but given recent developments 
regarding a possible countywide CCTV system, had produced an interim report for 
consideration.  This interim report had been considered by the Performance 
Monitoring Panel on 29 January 2013, and was attached at Appendix A. 
 
The Chairman of the Task Group presented the recommendations and clarified that 
this was an interim report.  The Task Group agreed that the current system provided 
a valuable service that was good value for money, however, could cost more if it was 
allowed to lapse.  There were issues around the recruitment of volunteers; parish 
councils (who felt that they had contributed to the system but had little input); and the 
inability to contact officers at South Holland District Council.  However, it was felt that 
these issues could be resolved and the system improved. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 
confirmed that there was a real possibility that both Holbeach and Long Sutton parish 
councils would withdraw from the CCTV scheme at the end of March.  He also stated 
that funding for interim CCTV contracts could come from the Community 
Development Reserves which included monies for a new capital scheme for CCTV, 
however, this would reduce the amount available in the capital scheme for a new 
system in the future. 
 
The Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic 
Services reported that correspondence from the newly elected Police Crime 
Commissioner had advised that work on the efficiency of CCTV in the area was being 
undertaken, that the current arrangements contained inefficiencies and that until 
these were resolved, more investment could not be contemplated. 
 
A discussion by all parties involved with CCTV ensued and the following observations 
were made:  
 

• Inspector Jim Tyner, representing Lincolnshire Police, stated that although it was 
difficult to produce data to confirm the benefits of CCTV to the Police, he did 
believe that it worked and that it was helpful to the Police in their work.  He 
commented that, if it was advertised that there was no CCTV in an area, this 
would have a negative impact and he was therefore concerned if parishes 
withdrew from the scheme.  He fully supported the work undertaken by volunteers 
who operated the CCTV equipment, although there were retention problems.  

Page 6



- 53 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

Alongside the current recruitment process for street pastors, the Police were 
hoping to recruit prayer pastors to provide logistical and spiritual support, and 
hoped that this resource could also be used to monitor CCTV. 

 

• Harry Drury, representing Local Business Organisations, commented that concern 
around the future of CCTV in the area was high on the agenda for local 
businesses.  Retailers had concerns if the CCTV system was to be switched off, 
and Holbeach Business Forum was disappointed to hear that provision for CCTV 
was not to be included within the parish council’s budget.  He suggested that the 
Chamber of Commerce should lead a campaign to encourage volunteers to 
monitor the CCTV cameras.     

 

• Ladey Adey, representing Lincolnshire Community and Voluntary Service, 
advised that her organisation could work with the Chamber of Commerce to assist 
with volunteers to monitor the CCTV cameras. 

 

• Councillor Reg Boot, representing Parish Councillors, commented that the parish 
councils should give their decision to not fund CCTV more consideration. 

 

• The Deputy Leader of the Council and the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big 
Society commented that local businesses should consider contributing monies to 
a scheme to provide CCTV as this responsibility should not fall only to the 
Council.  Harry Drury responded that there should be some input by local 
businesses.  Some had their own CCTV systems which could possibly feed into 
the current system, however, the legalities concerning this would have to be 
explored. 

 
The Deputy Leader of the Council and the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big 
Society advised that he was happy to support recommendations 2 and 3 within the 
Task Group’s Interim Report, however, there were concerns regarding the first 
recommendation to secure a further yearly contract with Grimston Technical 
Services.  A final decision regarding the future of CCTV could not be made until a 
report on a countywide scheme had been received.  A final decision would have to be 
made by the end of the financial year, (31 March 2013).  Grimston Technical 
Services would be advised that the Council would continue with them as providers of 
CCTV in the area until the end of March at which point the Authority should be able to 
advise of future timescales for CCTV provision.    
 
The Leader commented that he was encouraged by the level of support for CCTV 
that had been voiced during the discussion, and that all parties involved should work 
together to take CCTV provision forward, as detailed within the discussion.  Parish 
Councils also needed to be encouraged to be part of the future of CCTV, and ward 
members could use their influence to assist in this.  The Leader requested that all 
parties be written to, to encourage closer participation to jointly provide successful 
CCTV provision. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



- 54 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

DECISION: 
 
a) That the following recommendations of the Task Group be approved: 
 

• That an annual or biannual meeting be arranged with all partners involved to 
discuss requirements; and 

 

• That CCTV be re-evaluated in 3 to 12 months time when new broadband 
technology was available. 

 
b) That the following recommendation of the Task Group not be approved: 
 

• That Officers secure a further yearly contract with Grimston Technical 
Services 

 
c) That Grimston Technical Services be advised that South Holland District Council 

wished to retain its services until the end of March 2013 after which point a further 
discussion take place to discuss future timescales for the implementation of a 
countywide CCTV scheme; and 

 
d) That a letter be sent to all parties who provided and used CCTV, to encourage 

closer working in the provision and administration of CCTV in the South Holland 
area. 

 
(Other options considered: 

• To approve the Task Group’s Interim Report and all of its recommendations; 
or 

• Do nothing  
Reasons for decision: 

• Given recent developments regarding a possible countywide CCTV system, 
the Task Group had produced an interim report for the Cabinet’s 
consideration.) 

 
(Ladey Adey (South Lincolnshire Community Voluntary Services) and Jim Tyner 
(Lincolnshire Police) left the meeting at 7.35 p.m. following discussion of the above 
item.) 
 

67. GENERAL FUND ESTIMATES, FINANCIAL MEDIUM TERM PLAN, CAPITAL 
STRATEGY AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT  
 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director Finance (S151) which 
set out the General Fund revenue and capital estimates and the Financial Medium 
Term Plan, the Capital Strategy and the Treasury Management Strategy Statement.  
The Cabinet was requested to consider this information, prior to formal adoption by 
full Council. 
 
The appendices to the report outlined the 2013-14 revenue and capital estimates for 
the General Fund; the proposals for the setting of discretionary fees and charges; the 

Page 8



- 55 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

outline financial position through to 2017-18; the financial medium term plan; the 
capital strategy and the Treasury Management Strategy Statement. 
 
The financial medium term plan set out the framework within which the budget was to 
be set to ensure that it enabled the Council to achieve its own corporate objectives.  
The capital strategy set out the framework for the capital budget setting. 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement addressed how the Council would 
manage its treasury function over the coming year, as well as identifying the 
prudential indicators that the authority had to approve to meet the requirements of 
regulations. 
 
The report under consideration concentrated on the General Fund estimates.  The 
Housing Revenue Accounts had been approved at Council on 23 January 2013. 
 
The Cabinet was advised that the amount at which the Spalding Special Expense for 
a Band D property in 2013-14 should be set, detailed in recommendation D, was 
incorrect.  The amount should read £23.28 and not £23.29 as detailed within the 
recommendation. 
 
RECOMMENDED TO FULL COUNCIL: 
 
a) That the General Fund revenue estimates (Appendix A), use of reserves 

(Appendix D) and Fees and Charges (Appendix H) be approved; 
 
b) That the Council Tax for a Band D property in 2013-14, to be set at £156.24, be 

approved; 
 
c) That the Spalding Special Expenses estimates (Appendix C) be approved; 
 
d) That the Spalding Special Expenses for a Band D property in 2013-14, to be set 

at £23.28, be approved; 
 
e) That the Medium Term Financial Plan (Appendices A and B) be approved; 
 
f) That the Capital Strategy and Programme (Appendices E and F) be approved; 

and 
 
g) That the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, including the Minimum 

Revenue Provision Policy, Annual Investment Strategy and the associated 
Prudential and Treasury Indicators (Appendix G) be approved. 

 
(Other options considered: 

• To note the report and make changes if necessary; or 

• To do nothing  
Reasons for decision: 

• To comply with the budgetary and policy framework.) 
 
 

Page 9



- 56 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

 
68. QUARTERLY FINANCE REPORT (QUARTER 3)  

 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director Finance (S151) which 
detailed information on the forecast full year financial position, as at 31 December 
2012, and sought approval of recommendations detailed within the report.  
 
The Cabinet was advised that the covering report indicated that all recommendations 
should be made by full Council.  It was clarified that recommendation A was a 
decision that could be made by Cabinet and that recommendations B and C should 
still be referred to Council. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That the use of the Council Tax Reserve to finance the £40,000 contribution in 
respect of Spalding Flower Parade be approved. 
 
RECOMMENDED TO FULL COUNCIL: 
 
a) That the transfer of Waste Incentive Scheme revenue funding of £329,153 to the 

Organisational Development Reserve in advance of spend in 2013-14 be 
approved; and 

 
b) That the Disabled Facilities grant budget be increased by £78.147. 
 
(Other options considered: 

• Not to approve the recommendations detailed within the report; or 
• Do nothing. 

Reasons for decision: 

• To provide timely information to members on the overall finances of the 
Council and to make the best use of resources available.)  

 
69. WRITE OFFS  

 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director Finance (S151) which 
sought approval to write off irrecoverable debts. 
 
Members noted that the appendices were not for publication by virtue of Paragraphs 
1 (Information relating to any individual), 2 (information which was likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual) and 3 (information relating to the financial or business affairs 
of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)) in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972.  The appendices were therefore 
attached as agenda item 12, for members to consider in more depth if they wished. 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised that she had liaised with the Information 
Commissioner and had received guidance on the information detailed within the 

Page 10



- 57 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

Write-Off reports that should be considered as confidential.  It was hoped that future 
Write-Off reports would contain less exempt information. 
 
Members commented that it would be useful to have a comparison of the amounts of 
each of the write off figures, on a year by year basis.  The Director of Finance (S151) 
advised that a report could be produced which could be presented to the Cabinet on 
an annual basis, using the current year’s figures as a baseline.    
 
DECISION: 
 
a) That the following debts be written off: 
 

Council Tax  £10,627,50   
Non Domestic Rates £42,043.78 
Sundry Debtors  £11,301.23 
Total   £63,972.51 

 
b) That an annual report be presented to the Cabinet showing a year on year 

comparison of write-offs, using the current year’s figures as a base line. 
 
(Other options considered: 

• To approve the recommendation with amendments; or 

• Do nothing. 
Reasons for decision: 

• All recovery methods available had been considered and where appropriate 
pursued before making the decision to write off.) 

 
70. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
DECISION: 
 
To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

71. WRITE OFFS - APPENDIX 
 
Consideration was given to the appendices relating to the joint report of the Portfolio 
Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director 
Finance (S151) which sought approval to write off irrecoverable debts. 
 
This item had been dealt with earlier in the meeting, under agenda item 9. 
 
Members commented that they were unable to gain a full understanding of the 
circumstances leading to the amounts that were being requested for write off, and 
asked that a more detailed level of information be provided to Portfolio Holders. 
 
 

Page 11



- 58 - 
 

CABINET - 19 February 2013 
 

 

 

DECISION: 
 
a) That the S151 Officer provide the Finance Portfolio Holder with greater detail of 

outstanding debt and recovery action taken, and where there was a remaining 
challenge over debt recovery, this would be reported back; and 

 
b) That officers consider how to ensure liability for Council Tax for private rented 

property could be secured against the occupant rather than the landlord. 
 
(Other options considered: 

• Do nothing. 
Reasons for decision: 

• To provide a more detailed level of information for Portfolio Holders to 
consider before any decision be made to write off.) 

 
(The meeting ended at 7.55 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
These minutes are published on Friday 22 February 2013.  In accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed above will, unless otherwise stated, 
come into force and may then be implemented on Monday 4 March 2013 (i.e. after 
the expiry of 5 working days from the date of publication of these minutes), unless 
during that period a notice which is signed by at least one member of the Council and 
complies with the requirements of Rules 15(b), (c) and (d) of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules is served on the Assistant Director Democratic Services 
requesting that the decision be called-in and the Assistant Director Democratic 
Services approves the request for call-in.  Where a decision is called-in it will firstly 
be considered by the Performance Monitoring Panel on a date to be fixed. 
 
Any FINAL DECISIONS and any URGENT DECISIONS take effect immediately. 
 
Any RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL detailed above will be submitted for 
consideration to the meeting of the full Council on Wednesday 27 February 2013. 

Page 12



APPENDIX 1 
 

South Holland District Council Air Monitoring Stations 
 

Confirmation of information provided by the Portfolio Holder for 
Regulatory Services 

 
The District has two fixed air quality monitoring units, located at: 
 

• Westmere School, Anne Road, Sutton Bridge 

• Monkshouse School, Pennygate, Spalding 
 
Both units measure Nitrogen Oxides, Ozone, Particulates <10 microns 
(PM10), provide daily bulletins, monthly data reports and annual data reports, 
and data published in 'real time' on the following website: 
 
http://shollandair.aeat.com/  
 
In addition to these, the Council has 18 passive diffusion tubes measuring 
Nitrogen Oxides at certain locations across the district, changed and analysed 
on a monthly basis. 
 
The pinch points location is selected based on the nationally published air 
quality standards – this is dependent upon likely exposure of the public within 
a set number of metres of a carriageway, pedestrians and dwellings. 
 

Minute Item 63.

Page 1Page 13



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: The Portfolio Holder for Economic Development, Commercial 

Assets and Strategic Planning, and the Deputy Chief Executive 
     

To:    Cabinet – 7 May 2013 
 
(Author:  Mark Stanton, Economic Development Manager) 
 
Subject: Proposal Assessment Process – Springfields S106 Funding 
 
Purpose: To present a Proposal Assessment Process to be used to assess 

project proposals for the use of the remaining Section 106 
contributions received from the development of Springfields 
Outlet Shopping Centre  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre was completed in 2006.  The Centre 

is located approximately 2 miles from Spalding Town Centre. 
 
1.2 As part of the planning conditions, the Springfields developers were required 

to contribute funds under Section 106 (S106) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended.  This allows for contributions to be sought 
from developers towards the costs of providing community and social 
infrastructure, the need for which has arisen as a result of the development 
taking place. 

 
1.3 The total S106 funding from the Springfields development was £900,000.  Of 

this, £299,614 remains unspent, £34,332 of which is set aside exclusively for 
South Holland's Partnership Scheme in Conservation Areas (PSiCA) Grant 
Scheme, leaving a project pot of £265,282.  

 
1.4 Originally, £150,000 of the Springfields S106 monies had been set aside to 

part-fund South Holland's Partnership Scheme in Conservation Areas (PSiCA) 
Grant Scheme.  This scheme, which has run for the past 5 years, operates in 
partnership with English Heritage and the County Council and has of itself 
delivered significant improvements to historic commercial premises within the 
centre of Spalding. 

 
1.5 Whilst this partnership grant scheme is nearing its conclusion, and the majority 

of the overall monies (including significant and later additional match-funding 
from English Heritage) has now been either committed or spent, it is useful 

Recommendation:  
 
That the Cabinet agrees to the Proposal Assessment Process (Option B) by: 
 

• commenting on and agreeing the Proposal Assessment Process, either as 
presented, or with amendment as required; and 

 

• supporting a recommendation that the process be used to assess projects for 
possible use of Springfields S106 funding 

 

Agenda Item 7.

Page 15



background that this scheme has facilitated significant enhancements to the 
fabric of the town centre in accordance with the aims of the original S106.  

 
1.6 Contributions having already been made towards transport initiatives and the 

Spalding Christmas lights.  A number of potential projects have been 
proposed for the remaining project pot of £265,282, and a process is needed 
by which to assess projects and inform decision making by members for 
allocation of that funding. 

 
1.7 This report therefore presents a recommendation for a Proposal Assessment 

Process, developed by the Economic Development service with the support of 
Breckland’s Business Development Team.   

 
1.8 The process was designed to achieve core objectives as follows: 

• To fulfil the legal obligations contained within the S106 agreement 

• To ensure Springfields S106 funding is directed towards the most 
appropriate project(s) and activity 

• To ensure fair allocation of resources 

• To deliver maximum benefit from resources 

• To create a robust assessment process to inform member decision making 

• To engage stakeholders in the conducting of proposal assessment  
 

1.9 The Proposal Assessment 
Process has been developed as 
depicted in the flowchart and 
comprises the following key 
elements: 

 
1.9.1 Expression of Interest Form 

(Appendix A) to allow individuals 
and organisations to submit 
proposals for assessment and 
consideration of funding.  The 
form is based on Prince2 and 
includes the necessary elements 
of a Project Brief and Business 
Case to collect sufficient 
information from bidders to assess 
proposed projects. 

 
1.9.2 Proposal Assessment Tool to 

enable assessment of proposed 
projects.  The tool includes criteria 
against which all proposals will be 
assessed (Appendix B), weighted 
to reflect their relative importance 
to core objectives.  There are two 
types of criteria – eligibility criteria  

 
 

 
 

Page 16



 (to eliminate proposals that are ineligible for funding), and assessment criteria 
(to test each proposal’s ability to contribute towards the core objectives).   

 
1.9.3 The assessment and scoring is recorded in a Proposal Assessment Matrix 

(Appendix C). 
 
1.9.4 Assessment Panel to conduct the assessment of proposals, it is 

recommended that this will be made up of the following key representatives 
and stakeholders: 
 

• Portfolio Holder for Economic Development 

• Director of Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre 

• Nominated Executive Member 

• Economic Development Manager or representative officer 

• Development Manager (Planning) SHDC 

• Business Partner (Finance)  
 
1.9.5 The Assessment Panel will consider and score projects using the Proposal 

Assessment Tool provided and report the results of their assessment to 
Cabinet.  The report will categorise all proposed projects into four priority 
groups as follows with associated recommendations, which may include 
whether a proposal should receive full or partial funding: 
 

• Ineligible projects – these projects do not meet the eligibility criteria and as 
such are ineligible for assessment or consideration of funding. 

 

• Low priority projects – these projects do not sufficiently fulfil the core 
funding objectives and are not recommended for consideration of any 
funding allocation  

 

• Medium priority projects – these projects fulfil some of the core funding 
objectives and are recommended for consideration to receive funding 
allocation 

 

• High priority projects – these projects fulfil all or most of the core funding 
objectives and are recommended as the highest priority to be considered 
for funding allocation 

 
1.9.6 Cabinet will then be responsible for the final decisions of which proposals 

should receive any allocation of Springfields S106 funding. 
 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 Option A - Do nothing. 
 
2.2 Option B - Agree to the Proposal Assessment Process – Cabinet is asked to 

comment on and agree the process, either as presented or with amendment 
as required.  Cabinet is also asked to support a recommendation to use this 
process to assess project proposals. 

 
 

Page 17



2.3 Option C - Request an alternative assessment process – Cabinet may wish to 
request that an alternative means is found to meet the core objectives of 
fulfilling the legal obligation of the S106 agreement in a robust, fair and 
equitable manner. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Cabinet proceed with Option B to comment on and 

agree the Proposal Assessment Process as presented, and support a 
recommendation that the process be used to assess proposals for the use of 
Springfields S106 funding. 

 
3.2 Option B would establish a fair, equitable and robust process that is accepted 

by all key stakeholders and that would stand up to scrutiny and challenge.  
 
3.3 Option A is not recommended as it would mean that remaining S106 funding 

continues to be unallocated, with the associated risks that developers could 
apply to have the funding returned if it is not used and Spalding may lose out 
on projects that would benefit the local community and economy. 

 
3.4 Option C is not recommended as it is considered that Option B sufficiently 

meets the core aims and objectives required. 
 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 
 
4.1 The expected benefits are to achieve maximum value for money on behalf of 

South Holland residents, businesses, visitors and taxpayers.  This will ensure 
that S106 contributions are directed at projects that have greatest benefit to 
residents and visitors of the town centre and Springfields Outlet Centre.  

 
4.2 With regard to timescales, should Option B be agreed by Cabinet, it is  

proposed to seek Expressions of Interest immediately for assessment in the 
second week of May with the panel making its recommendations to Cabinet in 
June 2013. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 Carbon Footprint and Environmental Issues have been considered, and in the 

opinion of the report writer, there are none. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal  
 
5.2.1 The process must support and comply with the requirements of S106 

regulations, which specify the planning obligations that developers must 
comply with in order to enable a council to secure contributions to services, 
infrastructure and amenities in order to support and facilitate a proposed 
development. 

 

Page 18



5.2.2 The criteria within the Proposal Assessment Tool contain a requirement that 
any proposal must comply with the Council Constitution on contract and 
procurement procedure rules for competition. 

 

5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 Contracts issues have been considered, and in the opinion of the report writer, 

there are none. 
 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 Crime and Disorder issues have been considered, and in the opinion of the 

report writer, there are none. 
 
5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been conducted on this proposal.  

However, the Economic Development service is aware of the risks of 
discrimination in service delivery and will take steps to ensure that all sector of 
the community have equal opportunity to submit proposals for funding. 

 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 Financial issues have been considered, and in the opinion of the report writer, 

there are none. 
 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 The recommended option carries a risk of proposal bidders being dissatisfied 

with the assessment process and subsequent decision on funding allocation. 
This risk has been mitigated by including external representatives on the 
Assessment Panel, and by referring the final decision on project funding to 
elected members. 

 
5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 Staffing implications are in officer time, which can be met through the existing 

Economic Development team. 
  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1 This report will be circulated to all key stakeholders, including: 
 

• Elected members  

• Springfield Outlet Shopping Centre 

• South Holland Council Officers in Finance, Planning and Community 
Development. 

  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 Spalding Town Centre will be affected. 
 
 

Page 19



___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:- None 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post:    Mark Stanton, Economic Development Manager 
Telephone Number:  07748 116933 
Email:     mark.stanton@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision:  No 
 
Exempt Decision:  No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix A:   Expression of Interest Form 
Appendix B:   Proposal Assessment Criteria 
Appendix C:   Project Assessment Matrix  

Page 20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please read carefully the ‘Funding Scheme Guidelines’ before completing the form.  
Provide as much relevant information as possible and include any supporting documents. 
 

Name of applicant   

Name of organisation  

Contact address & 
postcode 

 

 

 

 

Contact telephone 
number 

 

E-mail address  

Type of Applicant or 
Organisation 

(please circle as 
appropriate) 

Individual member of the public            Yes / No 

Formally constituted club / association / trust          Yes / No 

Company Limited by guarantee/shares  
(not for profit)              Yes / No 

Company Limited by guarantee/shares  
(making a profit)              Yes / No 

Registered Charity 
(state number here:                                           )         Yes / No 

Other (please specify):             Yes / No 

 

Are you registered for 
VAT?  

 

 
Yes / No (if yes please state number) 
 

Declaration of Interest 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please state here if you have any personal interest in the 
project being proposed. This might be a financial interest, for 
example, relating to the company for whom you work, or a 
non-financial interest such as the membership of an 
association. 
 
 

EXPRESSION OF INTEREST FORM 

SECTION 106 FUNDING SCHEME 
 

Allocation of S106 Funding Contributions  
Received from the Springfields Outlet Shopping  
Centre Development 
 

Page 21



 

Organisation 
Description  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please give a brief description of your organisation, explaining 
when it was set up, main aims and objectives, management 
arrangements, number of paid employees and volunteers, 
past achievements. 
 
 

Outline of Project  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please provide an outline of the project, its purpose and an 
explanation of what the S106 funding will be spent on: 

 

Location of the 
proposed project 

 

 

 

 

Note:  The S106 schedule clearly specifies that funded activity 
should focus on Spalding town centre and/or Springfields 
Outlet Shopping Centre. 

 

Page 22



Required Consents 

 

 

 

 

 

Please provide details of any further consents required, e.g. 
planning permission, building regulations, change of use etc. 
 
 

Evidence of Need 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please provide details of how local need and support for your 
project has been demonstrated.  This might be through 
surveys and questionnaires, or involvement of local groups in 
developing proposals. 
 
 
 

Customer Impact  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please provide details of how your project will have a positive 
impact for target customer groups and will not unfairly exclude 
individuals or sectors of the community.  Target customers 
include the general public – in particular current and future 
visitors to Spalding town centre and Springfields Outlet 
Shopping Centre – as well as local businesses and South 
Holland council tax payers. 
 
 
 

Page 23



Expected Benefits 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please provide details of the expected financial or non-
financial benefits that the project will deliver.  These should 
relate to the objectives of the Springfields S106 specified 
purposes and/or Council objectives and priorities (see funding 
scheme guidelines at end of form). 

 
 
 
 

Environmental 
Benefits 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In addition to the expected benefits above, please detail any 
environmental benefits that your project will deliver.  For 
example, reduced carbon emissions, improved air quality, 
energy saving mechanisms, use of recycled materials or local 
suppliers. 

 

 

Page 24



Project Costs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please provide details of the total project expenditure, 
together with a project cost breakdown. 

 

 

Sources of Funding 
and Funding 
Requirement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please specify the requirement from Springfields S106 
funding together with details of other sources of funding, e.g. 
match funding from organisation’s own reserves or other grant 
funding. 

Ongoing Funding 
Requirement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please provide detail of any ongoing funding requirement, and 
identify secure sources for any future capital or revenue 
requirements. 

 

 

Page 25



Project Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please provide details of your project plan, including project 
timetable, key tasks, milestones and dates as well as 
communication, risks and project management. 

 

 

Page 26



Additional Information 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please provide details of any additional information that you 
think may be relevant in the assessment of your project. 

 

 

 

 

Signed 
 

 

Name 
 

 

Date 
 

 

On behalf of 
 

 
Closing date for submissions:   
 
Please return this Expression of Interest form and any supporting documents by the 
closing date to: 
 
Nigel Burch 
South Holland District Council 
Priory Road 
Spalding 
PE11 2XE 
 
email:  nburch@sholland.gov.uk 

Page 27



 
 
 
Please read these guidelines before completing the application form.  
 
Section 106 Funding 
 
Under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended, contributions can be sought 
from developers towards the costs of providing community and social infrastructure, the need for 
which has arisen as a result of a new development taking place.  
 
It is important to note that S106 monies may only be spent on facilities where the new development 
has, as least in part, contributed to the need for the facilities.  This means that normally for local 
level facilities these will be based in the same community in which the contributing development is 
located. 
 
The level of funding contributions is negotiated with developers during the planning application 
process and the District council normally receives the actual payment of these S106 monies either 
when the development work commences or more often, when it is part complete.  For more 
information about S106 funding in your community please contact the South Holland District 
Council planning department on 01775 761161 or email info@sholland.gov.uk. 
  
The Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre S106 Schedule 
 
The Section 106 Third Schedule for the Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre development outlines 
the Council’s covenants for S106 contributions.  The schedule specifies how monies should be 
paid and also the Specified Purposes for which they can be used.  Sections 2 and 3 of the 
Schedule reads as follows: 
 
2. The Council shall use the sums 0 for the Specified Purposes which shall mean the 

following –  
 
2.1 transport initiatives between the Spalding town centre and the Development / Springfields 

Outlet Shopping Centre 
 
2.2 joint marketing of the Spalding town centre and the Development / Springfields Outlet 

Shopping Centre 
 
2.3 Spalding Town Centre initiatives and improvements agreed in writing with the Developer 

and the Owner 
 
3. Before any sums are withdrawn 0 for any of the Specified Purposes all expenditure shall 

be agreed by the Council and the Owner and the Developer (such agreement not to be 
unreasonably withheld) 

 
A process has been agreed by the Council’s Executive to assess proposals for use of the S106 
contributions and to ensure proposals meet the aims and objectives outlined in the schedule. 
 
 
Who can apply? 
 
Applications for use of the Springfields S106 funding may be received by any individual, group or 
organisation that has a proposal for how the funding might be used to achieve the aims and 
objectives outlined in the S106 schedule. 
 
 
 

FUNDING SCHEME GUIDELINES 

Page 28



 
What types of projects might be eligible? 
 
Projects must fulfil the following criteria to be eligible for assessment of S106 funding: 
 

1. Funded activity should focus on Spalding town centre and/or Springfields Outlet Shopping 
Centre 

2. Projects must meet the Specified Purposes described in section 2.2 and/or 2.3 of the 
Springfields S106 schedule (funding for section 2.1 has been fully committed). 

3. Projects will not be permitted to draw down advance funding and will be required to comply 
with an agreed process to draw down funding retrospectively and at agreed stages 
throughout the project’s delivery 

4. Projects must neither conflict with nor impact on the statutory functions of South Holland 
District Council 

5. Projects must not conflict with the Council’s contract and procurement procedure rules for 
competition (specified in Part 4, section 7 of the South Holland District Council 
Constitution). 

 
 
Furthermore, projects that can demonstrate achievement of the following criteria will be more likely 
to receive higher priority in the assessment process (described further in the next section). 
 

1. Local need and support, possibly through surveys and questionnaires, or involvement of 
local groups in developing proposals 

2. A positive impact for target customer groups (general public – in particular current and 
future visitors to Spalding town centre and Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre, local 
businesses and South Holland council tax payers). In addition, project benefits must not 
unfairly exclude individuals or sectors of the community. 

3. Excellent value for money – that the expected benefits from the project will outweigh the 
expected costs.  E.g. by providing a full breakdown of project costs as well as the benefits 
that the project is expected to deliver (the business case for the project). 

4. A well-prepared and robust project plan.  This should include key tasks, milestones and 
dates as well as communication, risks and project management. 

5. Ability to be completed within 12 months of a funding agreement being signed, to ensure 
benefits start to be realised within reasonable timeframes. 

6. A realistic assessment of ongoing financial viability.  The project life span should last longer 
than the funding, and secure sources must be identified for any future capital or revenue 
requirements. 

7. Little or no requirement for significant further consents (e.g. planning or building regulation 
permissions), to increase the likelihood of project deliverability and limit the impact of 
factors outside of the project’s control. 

8. Delivery of environmental benefits, such as reduced carbon emissions, improved air quality, 
energy saving mechanisms, use of recycled materials or local suppliers. 

9. Other sources of funding towards total project costs, to reduce the percentage of S106 
funding required in relation to total project costs.  For example, match funding from the 
organisation’s own reserves or other grants. 

 
 
 
 

Page 29



 
How are applications assessed? 
 
South Holland District Council is the accountable body for the spending of S106 monies and the 
Council needs to ensure: 
 

• the legal obligations contained within the S106 agreement are fulfilled  

• S106 funding is directed towards the most appropriate project(s) and activity 

• fair and transparent allocation of resources 

• maximum benefit is delivered from resources 

• stakeholders are engaged in the allocation of funding  
 
Assessment of proposed projects will therefore be carried out by a Proposal Assessment Process, 
which has been agreed by the Council’s Executive.  An Assessment Panel comprising of Council 
elected members, officers and independent business / community representatives will assess and 
score proposals against the criteria described in the section above.   
 
How is the decision made? 
 
The Assessment Panel will report its recommendations to the Council Cabinet based on this 
assessment, and Cabinet will then make decisions about the allocation of S106 funding to projects. 
 
How much funding is available? 
 
The total amount of S106 monies remaining is £299,614.  It is anticipated that these funds will be 
directed to multiple projects.  Projects can be supported with 100% of the project costs, however, 
applicants are positively encouraged to seek matching funding from other grant bodies, community 
sources or reserves where possible so that the monies can support as many local projects as 
possible. 
 
How should applications be made? 
 
All applications must be made on the Expression of Interest Form and returned to: 
 
Nigel Burch, South Holland District Council, Priory Road, Spalding, PE11 2XE 
email:  nburch@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Claiming grant payments 
 
Grants are paid after work has been completed and the expenditure has been incurred, at which 
time copies of accounts/receipts must be submitted to demonstrate how much has been spent on 
the project.  Grants can be paid in instalment for larger projects.  The work may be inspected and 
you will need to show how you have complied with any other conditions set.  You will also be 
required to submit a project report to show how you have met the project’s original aims and 
targets before the final grant payment is made. 
 
South Holland District Council contact for further information 
 
Nigel R Burch AIED – Senior Economic Development Officer/Team Leader  
email: nburch@sholland.gov.uk tel:  01775 764563 

 
 

Page 30



Business Development, Breckland Council 
For and on behalf of South Holland District Council Page 1 of 6 

Proposal Assessment  
Criteria 
 
 
Project 
 
Project Assessment – Springfields S106 Funding 
 
Purpose 
 
To assist the selection, scoring and prioritisation of proposed projects for 
receipt of Springfields S106 funding. 
 
Background 
 
The Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre was completed in 2006.  The Centre 
is located approximately 2 miles from Spalding Town Centre. 
 
As part of the planning conditions, the Springfields developers were required 
to contribute funds under Section 106 (S106) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended.  This allows for contributions to be sought 
from developers towards the costs of providing community and social 
infrastructure, the need for which has arisen as a result of the development 
taking place. 
 
A proportion of the S106 funding received from the Springfields development 
remains unspent, and a number of proposals are likely to be received from the 
community for allocation of this funding.   
 
This document details 5 eligibility criteria (labelled E1 to E5) and 9 
assessment criteria (labelled A1 to A9) that the Assessment Panel will use to 
assess and score each funding proposal.  The final scoring and ranking of 
proposed projects will be used to inform decision making by elected members 
about which proposals will receive funding and how much funding will be 
allocated.   
 
Eligibility Criteria 
 
The eligibility criteria represent the essential requirements that a proposal 
must meet to be considered for further assessment.  Each proposal must 
answer satisfactorily to each of the eligibility questions to proceed for 
assessment.   
 
Assessment Criteria 
 
The assessment criteria are weighted from level 1 (low importance) to level 5 
(most importance) in terms of their relevant importance to the overall funding 

Page 31



Business Development, Breckland Council 
For and on behalf of South Holland District Council Page 2 of 6 

objectives.  An indicative weighting drawn from objectives in the project 
mandate and discussions with the Economic Development team has already 
been applied (indicated as ‘Wx’).   
 
Both the criteria and the weighting must be agreed by the Assessment Panel.  
Broad details of the eligibility and assessment criteria will be published with 
the Expression of Interest (EOI) form so that bidders are aware of the 
minimum essential requirements and how their proposals will be assessed. 
 
Assessment and Scoring 
 
Proposed projects will be assessed against questions in each criterion on a 
relevant scale of 1 (definite no) to 5 (definite yes).  The criteria weighting will 
be applied in order to calculate a total score for each proposal that will 
indicate which of the following four categories it falls into (to be used as 
guidance for recommendations and decision making only): 
 

• Ineligible projects – these projects do not meet the eligibility criteria and 
as such are ineligible for assessment or consideration of funding. 

• Low priority projects – these projects do not sufficiently fulfil the core 
funding objectives and are not recommended for consideration of any 
funding allocation  

• Medium priority projects – these projects fulfil some of the core funding 
objectives are recommended for consideration to receive funding 
allocation 

• High priority projects – these projects fulfil all or most of the core 
funding objectives and are recommended as the highest priority to be 
considered for funding allocation 

 
This detail is recorded in a separate spreadsheet tool named ‘project 
assessment matrix’.   The total scores can be used to eliminate, select and 
prioritise individual proposals to be considered for allocation of Springfields 
S106 funding to fulfil the legal obligations within the S106 agreement. 
 

Page 32



Business Development, Breckland Council 
For and on behalf of South Holland District Council Page 3 of 6 

Eligibility Criteria 

 
Proposals must receive satisfactory answers to all of the following questions 
to proceed to assessment and scoring by the Assessment Panel. 
 

Criteria E1:  Location 
 
The S106 schedule clearly specifies that funded activity should focus on 
Spalding town centre and/or Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre. 
 
Q: Is the proposed project location focused on Spalding town centre 

and/or Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre? 
 

Criteria E2:  S106 Funding Objectives 
 
Sections 2.1 to 2.3 of the S106 schedule clearly specify the purposes for 
which funding can be used as follows.  Funding allocation for section 2.1 has 
been fully committed and no further funding can be allocated to these 
projects.  Projects therefore must meet the Specified Purposes described in 
section 2.2 and/or 2.3. 
 
2.1 transport initiatives between the Spalding town centre and the 

Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre 
 
2.2 joint marketing of the Spalding town centre and the Springfields Outlet 

Shopping Centre 
 
2.3 Spalding town centre initiatives and improvements 
 
Q: Does the proposal meet Specified Purposes in section 2.2 and/or 2.3 of 

the S106 schedule? 
 

Criteria E3:  Release of Funding 
 
South Holland District Council must ensure strong governance and financial 
control of all public money.  For this reason proposals will not be permitted to 
draw down advance funding.  All successful projects will be required to 
comply with an agreed process to draw down funding retrospectively and at 
agreed stages throughout the project’s delivery. 
 
Q: Does the proposed project require advance draw down of funding?  
 

Criteria E4:  Statutory Function Conflict 
 
Proposed projects must neither conflict with nor impact on the statutory 
functions of South Holland District Council. 
 
Q: Does the proposed project conflict with or impact on a statutory 

function? 

Page 33



Business Development, Breckland Council 
For and on behalf of South Holland District Council Page 4 of 6 

Criteria E5:  Procurement Requirements 
 
Part 4, section 7 of the South Holland District Council Constitution specifies 
the contract and procurement procedure rules for competition with which all 
expenditure must comply as follows: 
 

• £0 to £5,000 – minimum of three written quotations  

• £5,001 to £10,000 – minimum of three written quotations 

• £10,001 to £25,000 – minimum of three written quotations 

• £25,001 to £75,000 - three written quotations based on a Request For 
Quotation document (RFQ) with simplified Terms & Conditions (T&Cs) 

• £75,001 to relevant EU Threshold (at www.ojec.com) – Formal Tender 
Process 

• Above EU Threshold – Formal Tender Process and if above £500,000 the 
Key Decision Process 

 
Q: Does the proposed project conflict with the Council’s contract and 

procurement procedure rules for competition? 
 
 
 
 

Assessment Criteria 

 

Criteria A1:  Evidence of Need (W5) 
 
Higher priority will be given to proposals that can demonstrate local need and 
support for their project.  This might be demonstrated through surveys and 
questionnaires, or involvement of local groups in developing proposals. 
 
Q: Has the proposal demonstrated a sufficient level of local need and 

support for the project? 
 

Criteria A2:  Customer Impact (W5) 
 
Higher priority will be given to projects that can demonstrate a positive impact 
for target customer groups. In addition, project benefits must not unfairly 
exclude individuals or sectors of the community.  Target customers: 
 

• general public – in particular current and future visitors to Spalding 
town centre and Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre  

• local businesses  

• South Holland council tax payers 
 
Q: Has the proposal demonstrated a positive impact for target customer 

groups? 
 
 
 

Page 34



Business Development, Breckland Council 
For and on behalf of South Holland District Council Page 5 of 6 

Criteria A3:  Value for Money (W5) 
 
Higher priority will be given to projects that can demonstrate excellent value 
for money – that the expected benefits from the project will outweigh the 
expected costs.  This might be demonstrated in the provision of a full 
breakdown of project costs as well as the financial and non-financial benefits 
that the project is expected to deliver, which will form the business case for 
the project.  Expected benefits should relate to one or more of the following: 
 

• objectives of the Springfields S106 specified purposes: 
o joint marketing of Spalding town centre and Springfields Outlet 

Shopping Centre 
o Spalding town centre initiatives and improvements 
 

• Council objectives and priorities (see www.sholland.gov.uk under ‘Council’ 
then ‘Key Plans and Policies’) including Corporate Plan Priorities: 

o to be a Forward Looking Council 
o to Enable Our Communities 
o to Have Pride In South Holland 
o to Support Our Local Economy 
o to Develop Stronger Communities 

 
Q: Has the proposal demonstrated sufficient value for money? 

 
Criteria A4:  Project Plan (W3) 
 
Higher priority will be given to projects that can demonstrate a well-prepared 
and robust project plan.  This should include key tasks, milestones and dates 
as well as communication, risks and project management. 
 
Q: Has the proposal demonstrated a well-prepared and robust project plan? 

 
Criteria A5:  Timescales (W3) 
 
Higher priority will be given to projects that can be completed within 12 
months of a funding agreement being signed.  This is to ensure that benefits 
start to be realised for target customers within reasonable timeframes. 
 
Q: Can the project be completed within 12 months of funding being 

allocated? 
 

Criteria A6:  Sustainability (W5) 
 
Higher priority will be given to projects that can demonstrate a realistic 
assessment of ongoing financial viability.  The project life span should last 
longer than the funding, and secure sources must be identified for any future 
capital or revenue requirements. 
 
Q: Has the proposal demonstrated ongoing financial viability? 

Page 35



Business Development, Breckland Council 
For and on behalf of South Holland District Council Page 6 of 6 

 

Criteria A7:  Further Consents (W2) 
 
Higher priority will be given to projects that will not require significant further 
consents (e.g. planning or building regulation permissions).  This is to 
increase the likelihood of project deliverability and limit the impact of factors 
outside of the project’s control. 
 
Q: Will the project require significant further consents? 
 

Criteria A8:  Environmental Benefits (W3) 
 
Higher priority will be given to projects that can deliver environmental benefits.  
This might include aims such as reduced carbon emissions, improved air 
quality, energy saving mechanisms, use of recycled materials or local 
suppliers. 
 
Q: Has the proposal demonstrated delivery of environmental benefits? 
 

Criteria A9:  Project Funding Requirement (W5) 
 
Higher priority will be given to proposals that request a lower percentage of 
S106 funding in relation to total project costs.  For example, a project that is 
seeking £25,000 of S106 funding for a project that will cost a total of £100,000 
has a funding requirement percentage of 25%. 
 
This might be demonstrated through commitments from other sources of 
funding to contribute to project costs, such as match funding from the 
organisation’s own reserves or other grants. 
 
Q: Is the proposal requesting a low funding requirement percentage? 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



Project Assessment Matrix Allocation of S106 funding

Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre

Ref Potential Project Name

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

List of Potential Projects

Brief Description

Business Development, Breckland Council

For and on behalf of South Holland District Council

P
age 37



Project Assessment Matrix Allocation of S106 funding

Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre

Eligibility Criteria

POTENTIAL PROJECT REF ! 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Criteria Question Answers

E1

Is the proposed project location focused on Spalding town centre and/or 

Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre?
YES

E2

Does the proposal meet Specified Purposes in section 2.2 and/or 2.3 of 

the S106 schedule?
YES

E3 Does the proposed project require advance draw down of funding? 
NO

E4 Does the proposed project conflict with or impact on a statutory function?
NO

E5

Does the proposed project conflict with the Council’s contract and 

procurement procedure rules for competition?
NO

Summary Does the project fulfil all eligibility requirements?
YES

POTENTIAL PROJECT REF ! 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

Criteria Question Answers

E1

Is the proposed project location focused on Spalding town centre and/or 

Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre?
YES

E2

Does the proposal meet Specified Purposes in section 2.2 and/or 2.3 of 

the S106 schedule?
YES

E3 Does the proposed project require advance draw down of funding? 
NO

E4 Does the proposed project conflict with or impact on a statutory function?
NO

E5

Does the proposed project conflict with the Council’s contract and 

procurement procedure rules for competition?
NO

Summary Does the project fulfil all eligibility requirements? YES

Required 

answer

Required 

answer

Business Development, Breckland Council

For and on behalf of South Holland District Council

P
age 38



Project Assessment Matrix Allocation of S106 funding

Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre

Assessment Criteria

POTENTIAL PROJECT REF ! 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Criteria Question W Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score

A1

Has the proposal demonstrated a sufficient level of local need and 

support for the project?
5

A2

Has the proposal demonstrated a positive impact for target customer 

groups?
5 Scoring Guide:

A3 Has the proposal demonstrated sufficient value for money?
5 1  =  Definite No

A4 Has the proposal demonstrated a well-prepared and robust project plan?
3 2  =  Mostly No

A5

Can the project be completed within 12 months of funding being 

allocated?
3 3  =  Possibly 

A6 Has the proposal demonstrated ongoing financial viability?
5 4  =  Mostly Yes

A7 Will the project require significant further consents?
2 5  =  Definite Yes

A8 Has the proposal demonstrated delivery of environmental benefits?
3

A9 Is the proposal requesting a low funding requirement percentage?
5

TOTAL WEIGHTED SCORE ! 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

POTENTIAL PROJECT REF ! 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

Criteria Question W Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score

A1

Has the proposal demonstrated a sufficient level of local need and 

support for the project?
5

A2

Has the proposal demonstrated a positive impact for target customer 

groups?
5 Scoring Guide:

A3 Has the proposal demonstrated sufficient value for money?
5 1  =  Definite No

A4 Has the proposal demonstrated a well-prepared and robust project plan?
3 2  =  Mostly No

A5

Can the project be completed within 12 months of funding being 

allocated?
3 3  =  Possibly 

A6 Has the proposal demonstrated ongoing financial viability?
5 4  =  Mostly Yes

A7 Will the project require significant further consents?
2 5  =  Definite Yes

A8 Has the proposal demonstrated delivery of environmental benefits?
3

A9 Is the proposal requesting a low funding requirement percentage?
5

TOTAL WEIGHTED SCORE ! 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Business Development, Breckland Council

For and on behalf of South Holland District Council

P
age 39



P
age 40

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	7. Proposal Assessment Process (Springfields S106 funding)
	App A Expression of Interest Form
	App B Proposal Assessment Criteria
	App C - Project Assessment Matrix


